Time began 6.00pm Time ended 8.15pm

COUNCIL CABINET 18 JANUARY 2005

Present: Councillor Burgess – Chair

Councillors Allen, E Berry, Care, Carr, Hickson, and West

Also present: Councillor Williamson

This record of decisions was published on 20 January 2005. The key decisions set out in this record will come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of five clear days unless a decision is called-in.

254/04 Apologies

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Samra.

255/04 Late items to be introduced by the Chair

There were no late items.

256/04 Identification of Urgent Items to which Call-In will not Apply

There were no urgent items

257/04 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

258/04 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The Part 1 minutes of the meeting held on 21 December 2004 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

Matters Referred to Council Cabinet

259/04 14-19 Area Wide Inspection

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Education Commission on the 14-19 Area-wide Inspection. The Commission were pleased that the overall judgement of Ofsted for the 14-19 Area Inspection of Derby was satisfactory, and that this had been achieved despite a number of challenges. The Commission however did have some concerns. The Commission was concerned that the new

college facility, the Joseph Wright Centre, should include a strong vocational element, in order to improve the range of opportunities and progression for Derby's students. Commission members were also concerned that the new college might offer educational opportunities that could have a negative effect on existing successful sixth forms. Members thought it important to ensure that the new college facility did not weaken existing viable sixth forms.

The Council Cabinet also considered a report from the Director of Education responding to the Education Commission. As the Joseph Wright Centre was due to open in September 2005, work was very much in hand to develop courses and recruit students. With a mix of 11-16 and 11-18 schools in the city, achieving the appropriate balance was not straightforward as students progressing to post-16 education had different needs. Generally, 11-16 schools supported the development of the centre to provide better progression opportunities for their students. 11-18 schools were concerned that the courses appeared to be heavily weighted towards A-level courses and not balanced across Level 1, 2 and 3 provision, which was the original proposal and which would have greater impact on the issues outline in paragraph 2.3 of the report. Overall, however, every effort must be made to achieve the right balance of course provision and match supply of places to demand.

Decision

- 1. To reinforce the Council's original response to the consultation on the establishment of the Joseph Wright Centre.
- To refer the matter including the Commission's recommendations to the Derbyshire Learning Skills Council as the appropriate strategic body for College provision. A copy to be sent to the College and the Council's representatives on both bodies.

260/04 Freedom of Information Act Policy

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Scrutiny Management Commission on the Freedom of Information Act Policy. The Commission concluded it would be appropriate to recommend to Council Cabinet that, once the Freedom of Information Act comes into effect, all the relevant requests for information, made to the Council, and the Council's response to those requests should be recorded.

The Council Cabinet also considered a report from the Director of Corporate Services responding to the Scrutiny Management Commission. The Director of Corporate Services felt that the Scrutiny Management Commission was correct in suggesting that operation of the Freedom of Information – FOI - within the Council should be monitored and reviewed. This was a new area and it was difficult to assess in advance its likely impact on the Council. As part of its work, the officer working party would review both the Publication Scheme and the operation of the information request and appeal process. A further report may be appropriate after a reasonable period of experience of FOI in practice.

- 1. To note the response of the Scrutiny Management Commission.
- 2. To approve and adopt the Freedom of Information Act Policy Statement as attached in the report.
- 3. To review the requests made under the Freedom of Information Act after months of operation.

3

261/04 Request for a Weight Restriction on the A514

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Development and Cultural Services regarding the request for a Weight Restriction on the A514. This had already been considered by Council Cabinet on 8 March 1999. It was reported that the flow of HGVs, while showing a significant increase following the opening of the A50, was lower than other comparable classified roads that gave access into the city. It was reported that the nature of the road, while clearly not of the standard that might be desired, was adequate to safely accommodate the volume of HGVs that it was carrying. As there had been no significant changes to the traffic situation since March 1999, it was still considered that a weight restriction was not necessary. Derbyshire Constabulary had also expressed concern about the enforcement implications of a weight restriction and had emphasised that this type of restriction would not warrant a high enforcement priority.

Decision

To defer the request and ask the Director of Development and Cultural Services to investigate the financial and legal implications of providing a weight restriction and a timescale for the proposed T12 link road before reporting back to a future meeting.

262/04 Report on the Performance of Schools and the Education Development Plan

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Education Commission on the report on the Performance of Schools and the Education Development Plan. The Commission recognised the progress schools had made in coming out of special measures and were pleased to see teacher workloads reducing and morale being boosted.

Decision

To note the report and have regard to the progress schools had made in coming out of special measures, to the reduction of teacher workloads and to the improvements in morale at Derby schools.

Key Decisions

263/04 Review of Castle Nursery School

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Education on the review of Castle Nursery School. The report looked at the progress Castle Nursery School had made since 24 February 2004, in implementing its development plan.

Options Considered

- 1. The low number on roll suggested the closure of Castle Nursery School. However, the Government had just launched its 10-year childcare strategy and it was considered prudent to sustain early years settings until the full impact of the strategy had been considered.
- Castle Nursery School could remain as a standalone nursery school but a headteacher would need to be appointed and this was not sustainable within the current budget.

Decision

To consult on options to federate Castle Nursery School with one or more schools as a means of maintaining it as a centrally based nursery school in the long-term.

Reasons

- 1. The low numbers of pupils taking up Foundation Stage FS education places at Castle Nursery School meant that the school was not sustainable as a standalone nursery school.
- 2. The Government had recently launched "Choice for parents, the best start for children: a ten year strategy for childcare" in which it set out plans to expand the level of free entitlement to FS education and to provide school-based childcare and children's centres in every community. Consideration would need to be given to how the new entitlement would affect school place planning in the FS. It was, therefore, considered prudent to sustain Castle Nursery School at least until the full impact of the strategy is clear.
- The school had demonstrated that it was committed to developing childcare services in line with the strategy and that it had some capacity to generate additional income by doing so.

264/04 Education Service Capital Projects 2004/05 – Phase 7

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Education on the Education Service Capital Projects 2004/05 – Phase 7. The report considered a 30 place Foundation Stage 1 Unit at Ravensdale Infant School, a proposed scheme at

St Andrew's Special School to replace the life expired cold-water storage tank to avoid a water hygiene issue and the required immediate reinforcement of chimneys at Markeaton Primary School.

Options Considered

- 1. If an FS1 unit was not developed at Ravensdale Infant School, children could have continued to attend maintained, private and voluntary provision elsewhere in the city. However, local children would have continued to miss out on their entitlement to FS1 education, as there were insufficient places in the immediate area to meet the demand and to satisfy parental choice. A statutory notice was determined and the Council was legally bound to implement this decision.
- 2. Capital projects to be funded from New Deal for Schools NDS Modernisation funding had to be prioritised in accordance with the AMP Local Policy Statement and Statement of Priorities. The options for inclusion in the programme were therefore considered as part of the prioritisation process.

Decision

- 1. To approve the design and tendering process for the development of a 30-place FS1 Unit at Ravensdale Infant School as set out in Appendix 2 of the report.
- 2. To approve the design and tendering process for capital programme projects shown in Appendix 3 of the report.

Reasons

- 1. Council Cabinet approved the publication of a statutory notice for the development of FS1 places at Ravensdale Infant School at its meeting on 6 July 2004.
- 2. The proposed projects at St Andrew's Special School and Markeaton Primary School related to work identified in recent surveys see Appendix 3 of the report.
- 3. The capital programme projects had been prioritised in accordance with the Asset Management Planning Local Policy Statement and Statement of Priorities in line with DfES funding streams.

265/04 Early Years Childcare Places Funding Grants

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Education on Early Years Childcare Places Funding Grants. The creation of these new childcare places fell within the SureStart Early Years Development and Childcare Strategic Development Plan 2004-2006.

Options Considered

Parents requiring childcare from the providers concerned, could have been signposted to other providers across the city. This would lead to children having to

travel and the care would not necessarily be in the area most convenient for the parents. Other childcare providers may not have had the capacity to deal with the increased demand.

Decision

To approve the following applications for childcare start up grant aid:

- Amara-Chi, 116-118 Peartree Road, Normanton, three year revenue grant of £10,272 and one off capital grant of £5,328.
- The Zone, Chellaston Junior School, one-year revenue grant of £6,910.
- Beaufort Community Primary School (Full Service Extended School), three-year revenue grant of £15,250, one off capital grant of £5,000.

Reasons

The criteria for awarding childcare start up grants had been previously agreed by Cabinet on 18 May 2004.

All applications meet the agreed criteria and had been endorsed by the Early Years and Childcare Service funding appraisal panel. This had representation from a range of organisations within the private, voluntary and statutory sectors.

266/04 Central Library and Joint Services Centre PFI

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Development and Cultural Services on Central Library and Joint Services Centre PFI.

Options Considered

PMP Consulting, an external specialist was contracted, to review all available consultation results, assess benefits and costs and advise on a preferred model. It would be this model which would feature in the Expression of Interest to Government.

It was clear from the examples in the Government guidance that neighbourhood libraries were seen as good vehicles for the PFI initiatives, and the consultants would advise on whether a proposal on neighbourhood libraries would be appropriate as part of the Council's thinking.

Decision

1. To approve the submission of an Expression of Interest to the Government's Department for Culture, Media and Sport, in response to their joint invitation with the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister and the Department of Health for bids against the latest Private Finance Initiative round.

- To authorise the Director of Corporate Services, Director of Development and Cultural Services and the Director of Finance to finalise the submission after a meeting between the consultant and the Leader, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Leisure and Cultural Services.
- 3. To note the potential impact of such a project on the Council's accommodation strategy.
- 4. To note the potential impact of such a bid on the Council's capital strategy.
- 5. To note the potential future revenue implications.

Reasons

- 1. The Best Value Review of Service Access concluded that a Joint Services Centre would meet the requirements for a modern integrated public service and information outlet in the centre of Derby, serving all those who wished to raise questions about or gain access to City Council services.
- 2. The Cultural Services inspection recently commented on the inadequacy of Derby Central Library and its shortcomings had featured in Derby City Council analysis over a number of years.
- 3. The DCMS, DH and ODPM had recently issued a call for bids against PFI credits, specifically for the purposes of creating joined up approaches to public services.

267/04 Community Grants Budget 2005/06

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Policy on Community Grants Budget 2005/06. The Community Grants Budget provided core funding for voluntary and community organisations in Derby. Organisations' service areas needed to fit within the Council's objectives and within four key CGB themes to be eligible for funding. The themes were to:

- support the voluntary and community sector infrastructure
- make communities powerful
- deliver services relating to social inclusion
- test out and deliver innovative approaches

Organisations applying for the three-year funding must have met one of two additional criteria:

- supporting the voluntary and community sector infrastructure, city-wide, for example, providing development support for voluntary or community groups
- play a strategic role in partnership with the Council in support its service areas on a city-wide basis.

Options Considered

Not allocating balance of £14,718 at this stage, but to retain as a contingency in 2005/06.

Decision

- 1. To approve, subject to Council approving the budget, the allocation of Community Grants Budget CGB grants to voluntary sector organisations for 2005/06 as outlined in this report and detailed in the appendices.
- 2. To approve the allocation of the remaining CGB budget from 2004/05 of £6,240 to support the development of the Derby Compact.
- 3. To refer the report to the Community Regeneration Commission for comment.

Reasons

All applicant organisations were appraised against the CGB criteria and in relation to fitness for purpose. Existing three-year funded organisations were recommended to receive a 2.7% inflationary increase. All one-year applicants who received one-year funding in 2004/5 were recommended to receive the same amounts in 2005/6. One new applicant organisation, not previously in receipt of CGB funding, was recommended for a grant. This retained the 2005/06 grants to voluntary organisations within the assumed CGB budget of £846,323.

There was no other budget provision for supporting the development of the Compact.

268/04 Developing Derby's Pilot Local Area Agreement - LAA

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Policy on Developing Derby's Pilot LAA.

Options Considered

To withdraw from the pilot because of the timescale and the concern that few freedoms and flexibilities would be forthcoming in the first year of the agreement.

- 1. To note the progress made so far by the Derby City Partnership DCP on developing Derby's pilot Local Area Agreement LAA.
- 2. To approve the decision-making process for developing Derby's LAA.
- 3. To authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Director of Policy and the Director of Finance, to approve a negotiation draft consistent with the approach set out in this report.

4. To refer Derby's Pilot Local Area Agreement to the Scrutiny Management Commission for comment.

Reasons

To progress the development of the LAA within the very tight timescale prescribed by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister – ODPM.

269/04 Community Safety Action Plan

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Community Regeneration Commission on the Community Safety Action Plan. The Commission recommended that the Council Cabinet should rework the action plan to incorporate, under Objective One, the tackling of prostitution with references in paragraph 3.2 and, as appropriate, in the associated actions on anti-social behaviour and should also rework the action plan to include explicit references to the role of Neighbourhood Watch schemes in promoting community safety.

The Council Cabinet also considered a report from the Director of Policy on the Community Safety Action Plan. The Action Plan focused on headline actions that most closely relate to the Council's core services and responsibilities and that match concerns outlined by council consultation exercises and the existing themes of the CSP. The plan outlined measurable improvements and key milestones that could be achieved by March 2006. On this basis, five high level objectives were proposed:

Objective One: Anti-Social Behaviour – reducing anti-social behaviour across the city with a particular focus on the priority neighbourhood renewal areas.

Objective Two: Violent Crime – reducing violent crimes with particular focus on the reduction of City Centre violence and domestic violence.

Objective Three: Youth Crime – preventing offending by young people, and making sure that those young people who do offend are supervised effectively in order to avoid further offending.

Objective Four: Burglary of Dwelling Houses – reducing dwelling house burglary, with a particular focus on high-risk neighbourhoods and properties owned by the Council and managed by Derby Homes.

Objective Five: Vehicle Crime – reducing car theft and thefts from cars with a particular focus on publicly managed car park provision.

Options Considered

The decision was specifically taken that the Council would produce its own Action Plan in line with the strategic framework provided by the Derby Community Safety Strategy. We will review the Action Plan, following the revision of the current Derby Community Safety Strategy in April 2005, in response to the Community Safety Audit, which had just been carried out.

Decision

- 1. To approve the Community Safety Action Plan for the period up to March 2006.
- 2. To refer the Community Safety Action Plan back to the Community Regeneration Commission.

Reasons

The Council had a legal obligation to take action to tackle crime and disorder in delivering services, and to make sure that community safety issues are fully considered in strategic planning processes.

270/04 Land at Chellaston Business Park

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Corporate Services on Land at Chellaston Business Park.

Options Considered

No other options were available which would deliver prospective developers, other landowners and other access right holders with a common agreed strategy and with edma support simultaneously.

Decision

To approve the terms that were provisionally agreed between the proposed developers, landowners and access right holders are approved.

Reasons

The terms had evolved over a period of years to provide a balance between the interests of all parties involved. Agreement of terms will allow progress towards contract documentation and – with emda's support – detailed site investigations and a funding agreement for the initial infrastructure.

271/04 Proposed Disposal of Land at St Benedict's Catholic School and Performing Arts College

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Directors of Corporate Services and Education. The site of two acres offered for sale belonged partly to Derby City Council and partly to the Diocesan Trustees. The sale of the land was to fund major improvement projects at St Benedict's School – an all-weather pitch, with changing rooms, and a School Management Suite and Learning Resource Centre. The Diocese had agreed with the Council that the capital receipt from the sale of the joint site would be invested in the improvement projects of the school. The Secretary of State for Education and Science consented to the sale of this part of the Council playing field, provided that the whole of the proceeds were used to enhance the

sport and educational facilities at schools, and specifically for the proposed improvements of St Benedict's.

Options Considered

Other sources of funding were considered. It was not possible to obtain funding from the DfES by any other means.

Decision

To approve detailed alterations to the offer accepted from Radleigh at the Cabinet meeting on 10 August 2004.

Reasons

Council Cabinet previously approved the disposal of land at St Benedict's School subject to certain conditions.

Further work had been done on:

- ground investigations and other "due diligence" by the proposed purchasers
- drafting the sale documentation
- preparing to seek tenders for the works proposed at the school to be funded from this receipt.

which gave rise to the need for detailed alterations to the offer previously accepted from Radleigh.

Budget and Policy Framework

272/04 Housing Rents

The Council Cabinet considered a joint report from the Directors of Finance and Policy on Housing Rents. The Government had set a policy to restructure social housing rents on a more consistent basis. Rent restructuring was the process by which the actual rent for each property would move from its current rent to a target level over a ten-year period, which started in April 2002. A report on rent restructuring was presented to Cabinet on 25 June 2002. This meant that the rent levels had to 'converge' by 2011/12 to a similar rate to other social housing. If the Council did not increase rents in line with expectations, it would face financial pressure on the HRA.

- 1. To refer the report to the Community Regeneration Commission on 25 January for consideration.
- 2. To recommend Council to approve the revision of rent and service charges

from 4 April 2005 on the basis set out in the report, including:

- an average weekly rental increase of £1.34 or 2.9% calculated over 52 weeks
- an average increase of 2.9% on service charges and garage rents.
- 3. To request a further report to determine the proposed increase in ground rents at Shelton Lock Mobile Homes Park, following further consultation with residents.

273/04 The Council's Vision, Objectives and Priorities and Draft Corporate Plan 2005-08

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Finance on the Council's Vision, Objectives and Priorities and Draft Corporate Plan 2005-08.

Decision

- 1. To agree the Council's vision and objectives as set out in Appendix 2 of the report.
- 2. To agree the priorities and their phasing over the three years 2005-06 to 2007-08 as set out in Appendix 3 of the report.
- 3. To approve the draft of the Corporate Plan 2005-08 as the basis for further work and approval.
- 4. To refer the draft plan to Scrutiny Management Commission for comment at its meeting on 31 January 2005.

Performance Monitoring

274/04 Commission for Social Care Inspection Children's and Family Services Inspection

The Council Cabinet received a presentation from Mike Livingston from the Commission for Social Care Inspection on the Commission's Social Care Inspection Children's and Family Services. The Council Cabinet also considered a report from the Director of Social Services on the Inspection. The inspection evaluated the collaborative, commissioning and service delivery arrangements between Social Services, other council departments and other agencies. The Commission focused on questions of cost and efficiency, evaluated Best Value Reviews and considered against this background the way in which services were being developed and delivered. The Commissions report was positive about the Councils management of its children's services and assessed the service as serving most children well with promising prospects for improvement.

To note the findings of the inspection carried out by the Commission for Social Care Inspection in October 2004.

275/04 Internal Audit - Interim Progress Report in 2004/05

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Finance on Internal Audit – Interim Progress Report in 2004/05. The Annual Internal Audit Plan was a risk based plan designed to review the control environment of the Council, including all its operations, resources, services and responsibilities in relation to other bodies to enable the Head of Audit and Governance to deliver an audit opinion. To meet this requirement for 2004/5, it was planned to cover a total of 202 audit reviews.

Decision

- 1. To note the activity and performance of internal audit in 2004/5 as at 14 December 2004.
- 2. To agree to waive contract procedure rules to enable audit agency resources to be brought in to secure delivery of the 2004/5 audit plan, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report.
- 3. To refer the report to Scrutiny Management Commission for information.

276/04 Supporting People Programme – Audit Commission Inspection

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Policy on Supporting People Programme – Audit Commission Inspection. The Audit Commission spent the week commencing 20 September 2004 inspecting Derby's Supporting People Programme. The inspection included: interviews with key staff – both the Council and its partners; focus groups of Supporting People providers, front line staff and carers; mystery shopping; and a review of all relevant documentation. The inspection team also attended a Supporting People Commissioning Board, a Supporting People Inclusive Forum and a Supporting People Core Strategy Group.

The Audit Commission made specific recommendations that offered practical pointers for improvement. These recommendations were:

Within one month

- Issue all Supporting People team members with the notes of their achievement and development meetings in order to ensure that individual targets are drawn to their attention and to provide a benchmark for their next appraisal.
- Devise and implement an induction programme for new starters in the Supporting People team.
- Invite representatives(s) of the voluntary sector to complement the membership of the Core Strategy Group.

Within two months

- Bring to a close the causes of dissatisfaction within the Supporting People team and ensure that every possible managerial step is taken that will bring about a stable and mutually supportive team.
- Involve stakeholders and users, develop a formalised consultation strategy and replace the inclusive forum with a new framework designed to meet the individual needs of service users from each client group. Ensure that carers, advocates and voluntary organisations are included.
- Complete the outstanding actions associated with the risk and contingency register, where these need to be in place.

Within six months

- Enhance and clarify access to Supporting People services by improving the quality, clarity, range and accessibility of leaflets and information for service users, stakeholders and referral agencies.
- Introduce further external moderation to enhance the review process and augment the capacity of the Supporting People team as far as possible by drawing in expertise from other departments and agencies to assist with reviews.
- Implement a systematic method to gauge the satisfaction of providers with the review process and use the feedback to improve the service.
- Develop and publish a formal appeals procedure for providers affected by annual cost savings measures, that clearly sets out the criteria by which judgements will be made.
- Help and encourage the health community to raise the profile of Supporting People by enhancing practitioners understanding of the potential impact the programme can have on health issues.
- Ensure that the office procedures are enhanced by the inclusion of task response times and target dates, which can then be monitored to ensure that quality standards are met.

Decision

- 1. To thank all the people involved in the Supporting People programme for their hard work.
- 2. To note the findings and recommendation of the Audit Commission Inspection of the Council's Supporting People Programme.
- 3. To recommend Council to approve the Action Plan for implementing the Inspection recommendations.

277/04 14-19 Area Inspection Action Plan

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Education on the 14-19 Area Inspection Action Plan. The post inspection action plan for Derby had a strategic vision for the 14-19 phase of education. It provided a clear indication of the steps and timescales required for achieving this vision, together with how and who would be responsible for implementing them. Arrangements for monitoring, review and evaluation were made through the Director of Education, the Deputy Chief Executive of DLSC and the Chief Executive of Connexions-Derbyshire. This group

would be called the 14-19 Executive Group and would report on progress to the Cabinet, LSC Board and Connexions Partnership.

The key areas for improvement were:

- Further development of the 14-19 strategy with effective systems for coordination and implementation.
- Ensure that the provision in Derby for 14-19 year olds meets their needs.
- Reduce the level of exclusions and improve the facilities and provision made by the Pupil Referral Unit.
- Reduce the number of young people not in education, training or employment.
- Improve accommodation in two special schools.
- Ensure that careers guidance, citizenship and personal, social and health education are available at Key Stage 4.

The post-inspection action plan would focus on three high level objectives, which would address the key areas for improvement. These were:

- Strategy, co-ordination and monitoring
- Attainment
- Advice and guidance.

Decision

To recommend Council to approve the post-inspection plan relating to the Ofsted 14-19 Area Inspection of Derby.

Contract and Financial Procedure Matters

278/04 Extension of Contract with the National Children's Home to Provide a Family Centre in Mackworth/Morley

The Council Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Social Services on the Extension of Contract with the National Children's Home to provide a Family Centre in Mackworth/Morley. In accordance with the SureStart Children's Centre guidance, Sure Start Mackworth Morley was being developed as a children's centre. Although Step In Family Centre could not be the hub of the centre because it does not provide integrated early education and childcare places, it was envisaged that the centre would continue to play an important role in the delivery of children's centre activities in the area. Children's centres, like Sure Start local programmes, provided services for preschool children and their families. Step In Family centre would contribute to the children's centre model but would continue to provide services for vulnerable children who had transferred to full-time school. As guidance and central funding for children's centres becomes clearer, proposals for the multi-agency funding of children's centres would be developed and future contracts with NCH will need to reflect this.

Decision

- 1. To approve the extension of the existing contract with the NCH to provide a Family Centre in Mackworth/Morley (Step In Family Centre) until April 2006.
- 2. To waive the requirement of Contracts Procedure Rule C15 to obtain tenders given the special circumstances that apply in this case.

279/04 Exclusion of the Press and Public

To exclude the press and public from the meeting during discussion of the following items, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 9 of part 1 of schedule 12A of Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Key Decisions

280/04 Land at Chellaston Business Park

The Council Cabinet considered a report from Director of Corporate Services setting out exempt information relating to the item considered earlier in the meeting.

Decision

To note the report.

281/04 Proposed Disposal of Land at St Benedict's Catholic School and Performing Acts College

The Council Cabinet considered a report from Director of Corporate Services setting out exempt information relating to the item considered earlier in the meeting.

Decision

To note the report.

MINUTES END